MANIPALCIGNA HEALTH
INSURANCE COMPANY
LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT

FINANCIAL YEAR 2021-22




















































































Form No.MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31T MARCH, 2022
(Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014)

To,

The Members,

MANIPALCIGNA HEALTH INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
401/402, 4 Floor, Raheja Titanium,

Western Express Highway,

Goregaon (East), Mumbai - 400 063.

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by MANIPALCIGNA
HEALTH INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED (hereinafter called the Company).
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our
opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minutes, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during
the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company
has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2022
complied with the statutory provisions of the applicable Acts listed hereunder and
also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in
place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minutes, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by MANIPALCIGNA HEALTH INSURANCE COMPANY
LIMITED for the financial year ended on March 31, 2022 according to the provisions
of:
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ii.

ii.

iv.

Vi.

-2-
The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the rules made thereunder;

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 (‘FEMA’) and the Rules and
Regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment;

The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed
thereunder;

The Company, being a health insurance company, has complied with
following acts:

a) The Insurance Act, 1938 including amendments and part thereof;

b) The Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority Act, 1999 and rules
and regulations made thereunder;

c) The Rules, regulations, guidelines, circulars and notifications issued by the
Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India (IRDAI) as are
applicable to a Health Insurance Company.

The Company has its own robust compliance system and the Company is also
subject to monitoring by and reporting of compliances to IRDAL

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the
Secretarial Standards 1 and 2 issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries
of India.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of
the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards etc. mentioned above.

We report that during the conduct of the audit, in our opinion, adequate systems
exist in the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with general laws.

We report that the Compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws, like
direct, indirect tax laws and Goods and Service Tax has not been reviewed in this
Audit since the same has been subject to review by statutory financial auditor and
other designated professionals.
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We further report that:

1. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper
balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent
Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took
place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the
provisions of the Act.

2. There are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate
with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

3. Adequate notices are given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings,
Board Committee Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent
well in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting. Majority decisions are carried
through while the dissenting members’ views, if any, are captured and
recorded as part of Minutes.

We further report that during the audit period, the Company had the following
specific events:

1. The Company has adopted new set of Articles of Association as per
Companies Act, 2013 at their Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on April 8,
2021 and complied with the provisions of the Act.

2. The Company has increased its Authorised Share Capital from Rs.
10,00,00,00,000/- to Rs. 15,00,00,00,000/- at the Extra Ordinary General
Meeting held on May 22, 2021. The Company has altered its Memorandum
and Articles of Association in this respect and complied with the provisions of
the Act.

Contd4....



-

. The Members of the Company have approved the issue of 45,00,000 Equity
Shares of Rs.10/- each at par and 43,23,521 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each at a
premium of Rs.0.408 on Preferential Basis at their Extra Ordinary General
Meeting held on May 22, 2021. The shares were allotted by passing a Circular
Resolution on May 28, 2021.

. The Members of the Company have approved the issue of 2,30,00,000 Equity
Shares of Rs.10/- each at par and 2,20,98,030 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each at a
premium of Rs.0.408 on Preferential Basis at their Extra Ordinary General
Meeting held on June 19, 2021. The shares were allotted by passing a Circular
Resolution on June 25, 2021.

. The Members of the Company have approved the issue of 50,00,000 Equity
Shares of Rs.10/- each at par and 48,03,913 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each at a
premium of Rs.0.408 on Preferential Basis at their Extra Ordinary General
Meeting held on July 23, 2021. The shares were allotted by passing a Circular
Resolution on July 29, 2021.

. The Members of the Company have approved the issue of 900, redeemable,
non-convertible, unsecured debentures having face value of Rs. 10,00,000/ - at
their meeting held on July 23, 2021. However, Company received an approval
Letter dated September 17, 2021 from IRDAI to issue 680, redeemable, non-
convertible, unsecured debentures of face value of Rs. 10,00,000/-. The shares
were allotted by passing a Circular Resolution on September 27, 2021.

. The Members of the Company had approved the issue of 2,25,00,000 Equity
Shares of Rs.10/- each at par and 2,16,17,638 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each at
a premium of Rs.0.408 on Preferential Basis at their Extra Ordinary General
Meeting held on August 30, 2021. The shares were allotted by passing a
Circular Resolution on August 31, 2021.
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10.

11.

12.
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The Members at their Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on November 17,
2021 have approved withdrawal of issue of remaining 1,47,05,881 Equity
Shares on private placement basis which was approved earlier by the Board in
dated November 03, 2021.

The Members of the Company at their Extra Ordinary General Meeting held
on November 17, 2021 have approved Employee Stock Option Plan 2021
(ESOP 2021) to create, grant, offer, issue and allot at any time, to the present
and/or future eligible employees as defined in ESOP 2021. As on March 31
2022, the company has not issued any equity shares pursuant to the ESOP
2021.

The Members of the Company had approved the issue of 1,61,53,846 Equity
Shares of Rs.10/- each at a premium of Rs.3/-and 1,55,20,360 Equity Shares of
Rs.10/- each at a premium of Rs.3.5306/- on Preferential Basis at their Extra
Ordinary General Meeting held on November 17, 2021. The shares were
allotted by passing a Circular Resolution on November 24, 2021.

The Board of Directors of the Company vide Circular Resolution dated
January 25, 2022 has allotted 1,84,61,538 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each at
premium of Rs. 3/- and 1,77,37,547 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each at a
premium of Rs. 3.5306/ - to the existing shareholders of the Company.

The Board had approved the issue of 1,92,30,769 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/ -
each at a premium of Rs.3/- and 1,84,76,620 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each at a
premium of Rs.3.5306/- on Preferential Basis at their meeting held on
February 03, 2022. Further, approval from the members of the Company is in
process.
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As informed, the Company has responded appropriately to notices/emails received
from the statutory/regulatory authorities including by taking corrective measures
wherever found necessary.

For GM] & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries

MAHESH KUMAR  Digitally signed by MAHESH
KUMAR S

ONI
SON I Date: 2022.05.11 14:26:05 +05'30"

[MAHESH SONI]
PARTNER

FCS: 3706 COP: 2324
UDIN: F003706D000306250

PLACE: MUMBAI
DATE: MAY 11, 2022

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as
‘ANNEXURE A’ and forms an integral part of this report.



To,

ANNEXURE A

The Members,

MANIPALCIGNA HEALTH INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
401/402, 4th Floor, Raheja Titanium,

Western Express Highway,

Goregaon (East), Mumbai - 400 063.

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter:

1.

Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of management of the
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records
based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial
records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are
reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we
followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and
books of accounts of the Company.

Wherever required, we have obtained the Management Representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events, etc.

The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules
and regulations, standards is the responsibility of the management. Our
examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of
the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

For GMJ & ASSOCIATES
Company Secretaries
MAHESH KUMAR  Digitally signed by MAHESH

SONI

KUMAR SONI
Date: 2022.05.11 14:26:40 +05'30'

[MAHESH SONI]
PARTNER

FCS:3706  COP: 2324
UDIN: F003706D000306250

PLACE: MUMBAI
DATE: MAY 11, 2022



C N K & Associates LLP, V P Thacker & Co.

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
501-502, Narain Chambers, 402, Embassy Centre,

M.G. Road, Vile Parle Easf , 207, Nariman Point
Mumbai - 400057 Mumbai - 400021

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Members
ManipalCigna Health Insurance Company Limited

Report on audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of ManipalCigna Health Insurance Company
Limited (“the Company”) which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the related Revenue Account
(also called the “Policyholders” Account”, or the “Technical Account™), the Profit and Loss Account (also called
the “Shareholders’ Account”, or “Non-Technical Account™), and the Receipts and Payments Account each for the
year ended March 31, 2022 and summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Tn our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Insurance Act, 1938, as amended by Insurance Laws
(Amendment) Act, 2015 (the “Insurance Act”), the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority Act, 1999
(the “IRDA Act”), Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority (Preparation of Financials Statements and
Auditor’s Report of Insurance Companies) Regulations, 2002 (“the Regulations™), Companies Act 2013(“the
Act™) to the extent applicable and in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, as applicable to Insurance Companies:

(a) in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022;
(b) in the case of the Revenue Account, of the net deficit for the year ended on that date;
(c) in the case of the Profit and Loss Account, of the loss for the year ended on that date; and

(d) in the case of the Receipts and Payments Account, of the receipts and payments for the year ended on that
date. '

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of
the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards arc further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
under the provisions of the Insurance Act, 1938, the IRDA Act and the Regulations thereunder, the Act and the
Rules thereunder and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code of Ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Matter

The actuarial valuation of liabilities in respect of claims Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR), including claims
Incurred But Not Enough Reported (IBNER) and provisioning for Premium Deficiency and Free Look Reserve
as at March 31, 2022 is the responsibility of the Company’s Appointed Actuary (“Actuary”) and has been duly
certified by the Actuary. The Actuary has also certified that in his opinion, the assumptions for such valuation are
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in accordance with the guidelines and norms, if any, issued by the IRDAI and the Actuarial Society of India in
concurrence with the Authority. We have relied upon the Actuary’s certificate in this regard for forming our
opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Director’s report, Management Report but does not include the financial statements
and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date
of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these Financial Statements to give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance and Receipts and Payments of the Company in accordance with the requirements of the Insurance
Act read with IRDA, Regulations / orders / directions / circulars / guidelines issued by the Authority in this regard
and in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, further
amended by Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 to the extent applicable and in the
manner so required.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors arz also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarante¢ that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from etror, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to
the financial statements, in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

o Evaluate the approprizleness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence pbtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements ot, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Regulations, we have issued a separate certificate dated May 11,2022, as “Annexure
A”, certifying the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of Schedule C to these Regulations.
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2. As required by paragraph 2 of schedule C to the IRDA Financial Statement Regulation and Section 143

(3) of the Act, we report that:

(2)

(b)

©

(d)

®

(8

()

(i)

®

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, proper
books of account as required by law have been maintained by the Company, so far as it appears from
our examination of those books;

As the Company's financial accounting system is centralized, no returns for the purposes of our audit
are prepared at the branches of the Company;

The Balance Sheet, the Revenue Account, the Profit and Loss Account and the Receipts and Payments
Account dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014, further amended by Companies (Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016 to the extent
they are not inconsistent with the accounting principles prescribed in the Regulations and
orders/directions issued by the IRDA in this regard,;

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
investments have been valued in accordance with the provisions of the Insurance Act, the Regulations
and/or orders/directions issued by the IRDA in this regard;

In our opinion, the accounting policies selected by the Company are appropriate and are in compliance
with the applicable Accounting Standards notified under the Act which continue to be applicable in
respect of Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, and the Rules framed thereunder and with the
accounting principles as prescribed in the IRDA Financial Statements Regulations and
orders/directions issued by the IRDA in this regard;

On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors, as on March 31, 2022 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2022, from
being appointec as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

Our report with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, is provided in Annexure
B hereto;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements o7 section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, we report that managerial remuneration is
governed u/s 34A of the Insurance Act, 1938 and requires IRDAI approval. Accordingly, the
provisions of Section 197 read with schedule V to the Act are not applicable, and hence reporting under
Section 197(16) is not required. However, sitting fees paid to directors is in compliance with Section
197(5) of the Act.
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(k) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with Rule 11 of

®

(i)

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our knowledge and
belief and according to the information and explanations given to us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at March 31, 2022 on its financial
position in its f'nancial statements — Refer Note No. 3.1 in the Notes to Accounts forming part of

financial statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts.

(i) There are no amounts which are required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection

(iv)

1.

Fund by the Company for the year ended March 31, 2022,

The Management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, no funds have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds ot share premium or any other sources
or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indircctly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

The Management has represented, that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, no funds have been
received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances; nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material mis-statement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year, hence Section 123 of the
Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable.

For C N K & Associates LLP For V P Thacker & Co.
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 101961W/W-100036 Firm Registration No. 118696W

* Digitally signed
HIREN by HIREN

o

i CHINUBHAI iy Kalpana Sagar: .
A SHAn By Rajpuriar 3
Hiren Shah Kalpana Rajpurkar
Partner Partner
Membership No: 100052 Membership No: 114928
Date: 11 May 2022 Date: 11 May 2022
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

UDIN: 22100052AIUTUI5279 UDIN: 22114928AIUWX]J7931
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Annexure - A

Auditors’ Certificate

(Referred to in paragraph 1 of our Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements forming part of
the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date)

This certificate is issued to comply with the provisions of paragraphs 3 and 4 of Schedule C of the
Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority (Preparation of Financial Statements and Auditor’s
Report of Insurance Companies) Regulations, 2002 (the “IRDA Financial Statements Regulations”) read
with Regulation 3 of the IRDA Financial Statements Regulations.

Management Responsibility

ManipalCigna Health Insurance Company Limited (the ‘Company’) Management is responsible for
complying with the provisions of the Insurance Act, 1938 as amended by the Insurance Laws
(Amendment) Act, 2015 read with Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India circular
IRDALF&A/CIR/FA/059/03/2015 dated March 31, 2015 (the “Insurance Act”), the Insurance
Regulatory and Development Authority Act, 1999 (the “IRDA Act”), the IRDA Financial Statements
Regulations, orders/directions issued by the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India
(the “IRDA”), which includes the preparation of the Management Report. This includes collecting,
collating and validating data and designing, implementing and monitoring of internal controls suitable
for ensuring compliance as aforesaid.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility, for the purpose of this certificate, is limited to certifying matters contained in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of Schedule C of the IRDA Financial Statements Regulations. We conducted our
examination in eccordance with the Guidance Note on Audit Reports and Certificates for Special
Purposes issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “ICAI™), which include the
concepts of test checks and materiality.

We conducted our examination in accordance with Guidance Note on Reports or certificates for special
purposes (Revised 2016) and Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (ICAI) in so far as applicable for the purpose of this Certificate issued by ICAI The guidance note
requires that we comply with ethical requirements of code of ethics issued by ICAL For the purpose of
this certificate, we have not performed an audit, the objective of which would be the expression of an
opinion on financial statements, specified elements, accounts or items thereof.

We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC)
1, “Quality Control for Firms that perform audits and review of historical financial information and other
assurance and service related engagements issued by the ICAT”.

Opinion

Based on our audit of financial statements for the year ended March 31,2022 and in accordance with the
information and explanations and representations given to us and to the best of our knowledge and belief
and based on our examination, of the books of account and other records maintained by the Company
for the year ended March 31, 2022, we certify that:

1. We have reviewed the Management Report attached to the financial statements for the year ended
March 31, 2022, and on the basis of our review, there are no apparent mistakes in or material
inconsistencies with the financial statements;
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2. Based on the management representation and compliance certificates submitted to the Board of
Directors by the officers of the Company charged with compliance, and the same being noted by the
Board, we certify that the Company has complied with the terms and conditions of registration
stipulated by IRDA;

3. We have verified the cash balances, to the extent considered necessary, and securities relating to the
Company’s investments as at March 31, 2022, by actual inspection or on the basis of certificates /
confirmations received from the Custodian and /or Depository Participants appointed by the
Company, as the case may be;

4. The Company is not a trustee of any trust; and

5. No part of the assets of the Policyholders’ Funds has been directly or indirectly applied in
contravention to the provisions of the Insurance Act, 1938, relating to the application and investments
of the Policyholders’ Funds.

Restriction on Use

This certificate has been issued solely in compliance with the requirements of Schedule C of the
Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority (Presentation of Financial Statements and Auditors’
Report of Insurance Companies) Regulations 2002, (“the Accounting Regulations”), read with
Regulation 3 of the Accounting Regulations and may not be suitable for any other purpose. Accordingly,
we do not accept or assume any liability or any duty of care of for any other purpose or to any other party
to whom it is shown or into whose hand it may come without our prior consent in writing,

For C N K & Associates LLP For V P Thacker & Co.

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 101961W/W-100036 Firm Registration No. 118696W
HJ HE N rb);gglﬂ:?rlgnm iyt Uy alpana Sagac Rajpurkar
CHINUB ;‘LT‘UW*N Kalpana Sagar B E

HA| [Crate: H :-:zwm;rsv;:.;:ﬁ:.s,m.m
2022.05.11 Rajpurkar gl oo el

SH AH 2I36:06 0530

Hiren Shah Kalpana Rajpurkar
Partner Partner
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Annexure - B

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

(Referred to in paragraph 2(i) of our Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements forming part
of the Independent Auditors® Report of even date)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of ManipalCigna Health
Insurance Company Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022, in conjunction with our audit of
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company, considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating cffectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and crrors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation
of reliable financ:al information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the
Standards on Auciting, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to Financial Statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to Financial
Statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes, in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reascnable assurance that transactions are recorded, as necessary, to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods ate subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company, considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting, issued by the ICAL

For C N K & Associates LLP For V P Thacker & Co.

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.: 101961W/W-100036 Firm Registration No. 118696W
HIREN  oine RS
Al SHAH Dsie2osny Rajpurkar i

Hiren Shah Kalpana Rajpurkar

Partner Partner

Membership No: 100052 Membership No: 114928

Date: 11 May 2022 Date: 11 May 2022

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

UDIN: 22100052AIUTUI5279 UDIN: 22114928 AIUWX]J7931




ManipalCigna Health Insurance Company Limited
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IRDA Registration No. 151 Dated November 13, 2013
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REVENUE ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2022 (AUDIT]

(Miscellaneous Business)
Rs ‘000

For the Year Ended 31st  For the Year Ended 31st
March 2022 March 2021

Particulars Schedule

1 Premiums earned (Net} 1 82,49,845 63,13,667
2 Profit/ (Loss) on sale/redemption of Investments
B Profit on sale of investments B B 26,589 1,03,700
Less: Loss on sale of investments - (1,96,402)
3 Others

(a) Interest Income - <
{b) Excess provision written back - -

(c} Contribution from Shareholders Funds towards Excess EoM 17,43,433 15,28,823
4 interest, Dividend & Rent — Gross 3,53,423 2,74,552

TAL(A) - ‘1:__~=.‘| = g

T I TYTY

103,73,

1 Clalms Incurred (Net) 2 62,83,835 38,59,547
2 Commission 3 10,06,352 8,21,188
3 Operating Expenses related to Insurance Business 4 39,78,074 32,91,640
4

Premium Deficiency - ‘

FETREEI e e G e T
Operating Profit/(Loss) from Miscellaneous Business
C=(A-B)

APPROPRIATIONS
Transfer to Sharzholders’ Account {8,94,971) 51,965
Transfer to Catastrophe Reserve - -
Transfer to Other Reserves

Significant accounting policies & Notes to Financial Statements. 16
The Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

As per our report of even date attached. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors.
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5SS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2022 {AUDITED)
{Miscallansous Business)

PROFIT

Rs '000
0 ded or the ded
0 d ] o
1 Operating Profit/iLoss|
fa)  Fire Insurance - -
(b}  Marine Insurance s =
{c) Miszellaneous Insurance (8,94,971) 51,965
2 Income From investments
{a} interesy, Dhidend & Rent - Gross 1,62,671 1,76,940
[b) Profit on sale of investments 15,535 53,976
Less: Lasson sale of | - {36,125)
3 | other inceme " 10,692 -
= ~ (rommty IE o = D ]
4 Provisions (Other Than Taxation)
{a)  Fordiminution in the value of Investments (refer note 3.21 of Sch 16) . (1,89,695)
{b)  Fordoubtful debts 2,159 3,002
fc}  Othars - -
5 Dther
(a) Expenses other than those related to Insurance Business
Personnel Cost 30,146 31,776
Legal & professional charges 2,696 1,275
Intarest & Bank Charges 314 275
Share Issue Expenses (Stamp Duty & Franking) 160 107
Expenses related to issuance of Debentures 37 bl
interest on Non-convertible Debentures 69,887 38,700
Miscelianeous a: 1,239 3,485
Contribution to policyholders Funds towards Excess EOM 17,43,433 15,28.823
b} Bad debts written off 3,452 3,098
{e}] Others . -
i _|roraue) i =
Profit / (Loss) Before Tax [25,58,596) | {11,74,090)
Provision for Taxation - !
Profit / {Loss) After Tax (25,59,596) {11,74,090)
APPROPRIATIONS
{a} _Interim dividends paid during the year
(b} posed final divid 2
{c) Dividend distribution tax - =
(d} Transer to any Reserves or Other Accounts = ]
Balance of profit/ (loss) brought forward from previous year {1,00,51,508) (88,77,418)

Significant accounting policies & Notes to Financial Statements. 16
The Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Financial Statements,
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH 2022 (AUDITED) '

Rs '000
5.No Particulars Schedule As at 31st March 2022  As at 31st March 2021
Sources of Funds
C Share Capital 5 1,11,76,186 94,19,022
Reserves and Surplus 6 35,41,464 32,98,637
Fair Value Change Account |
Fair Value Change Account - Shareholder 152 34
Fair Value Change Account - Policyholder 118 390
4 Borrowings 7 11,10,000 4,30,000
= — rotAt ] m = | ¥ ' ,27,920|
Application of Funds
1 Shareholder's Investments 8 27,97,190 27,16,039
2 Policyholder’s Investments 8A 65,04,269 53,05,386
3 Loans 9 - -
4 Fixed Assets 10 2,36,395 2,84,388
5 Current Assets
Cash and Bank Balances 11 10,99,041 6,63,693
Advances and Other Assets 12 4,44,437 3,33,928
Sub-Total (A) 15,43,478 9,97,621
6 Current Liabilities 13 31,04,654 25,38,713
Provisions 14 47,59,862 36,68,146
Sub-Total (B) 78,64,516 62,06,859
Net Current Assets (C) = (A - B) B (63,21,038) (52,09,238)
8 Miscellaneous Expenditure (To the extent not written off or 15 !
adjusted) ]
9 Debit Balance In Profit and Loss Account 1,26,11,104 1,00,51,508
Eh Tl n 0 TAL Sy i [ & e [ | rm Tt =l D = A i >
Significant accounting policies & Notes to Financial Statements. 16

The Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

As per our report of even date attached.
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ManipalCigna Health Insurance Company Limited

(Formerly known as CignaTTK Health Insurance Company Limited)
IRDA Registration No. 151 Dated November 13, 2013

flows from activities

to the

Pavments of claims

Pavments of commission and brokerage
of

Denosits, advances and staff loans

Income taxes paid {Net)

Goods & Service Tax

Cash flow before extraordinary items
Cach flow from extraordinarv items

activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets

Purchase of investments

Loans disbursed

Sale of investments

Repavments received

Rents / Interests / Dividends received

Investment in money market instruments and in liguid mutual funds {net)
Investment in Fixed Deposit{Net)

activities
Cash flows from financing activities

re share
Share Issue Expenses
Proceeds from issuance of debentures
Repayments of borrowing
Interest
Debenture Issue Expenses

rates on cash and cash net

Netincrease A+B+C+D)

atthe of the
Cash and cash eau valents at the end of the vear*

* Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents with the Balanc2 Sheet:

Cash and Bank balances

Less: Deposit Accounts not considered as cash and cash equivalents as defined in AS-3 "Cash Flow Statements" and

therefore included in purchase of investments
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

As per our report of even date attached
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10054 029 77 39 662
(74.211) {1.03.970)
{64,46,513) (37,05,631
31804
{23,660} 78,393
{85.850)
(14,01,610)
(47,090} {1,29,498)
356 637
156 37 465)
25.64.224 38,53,670
514 468 488115
491183 {1,20,128}
{317 100} {1,78.400)
19 99 930 21 30000
(1601 (107}
6.80.000
{37}
26,79,794 21.29.893
1,18,248 3,20,974
4.77.793 1,56.819
5,96,041 4,77,793
10,99,041 6,63,693
(5,03,000) {1,85,900)
5,96,041 4,77,793
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ManipalCigna Health Insurance Company Limited
(Formerly known as CignaTTK Health Insurance Company Limited)
IRDA Registration No. 151 Dated November 13, 2013

SCHEDULES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Particulars

Health Insurance

For the Year Ended
31st March 2022

UGH ]

Miscellaneous

for the Year Ended
31st March 2021

Audited

Miscellaneous

Personal Accident

For the Year Ended
31st March 2022

Audited

Miscellaneous

For the Year Ended
31st March 2021

Audited

Miscellaneous

Re '000

Consolidated Total

For the Year Ended
31st March 2022

Audited

Miscellaneous

For the Year Ended
315t March 2021

Audited

Miscellaneous

1 Premium from direct business written (Net of GST) 97,15,959 74,57,982 1,45,814 96,930 98,61,773 75,54,912
2 Add: Premium on reinsurance accepted - - - - -
3 Less : Premium on reinsurance ceded 5,01,023 3,84,499 18,736 8,469/ 5,19,759 3.92,968
4 Net Premium 92,14,936 1,27,078 88,461 93,42,014 71,61,944

70,73,483

ge in reserve for unexpirad risks

10,72,09

remi fr iness effected :

In India 81,42,845 62,31,457 1,07,000 82,210 82,49,845 63,13,667
Outside India i - = =T
' e ' E st3667




ﬁrManipal ,@Cigna ManipalCigna Health Insurance Company Limited
sl {Formerly known as CignaTTK Health Insurance Company Limited)

IRDA Registration No. 151 Dated November 13, 2013

Health Insurance Personal Accident Consclidated Total

Far the Year Ended For the Year Ended For the Year Ended For the Year Ended For the Year Ended For the Year Ended

PRitiitnt 31t March 2022 315t March 2021 31st March 2022 31st March 2021 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited Audited
Misceltaneous Miscellaneous Miscellaneous Miscellaneous Miscellaneous Miscellaneous
Claims paid
1 Direct claims 64,99.016 37,30,245 17.758 22,865 65,16,774 37.53.110
2 Add : Re-dnsurance accopted - - - - - =
3 Less : Re-insurance Ceded 3,24,843 1,86,612 990 1,218 3.25,839 1.87,830
Net Claims Pald 61,74,167 35,43,633 | 16,768 21,647 61,90,935 35,65,280
Add : Claims Outstanding 10,14,766 9,23,866 47,784 45,785 10,62,550 9,69,651

Less : Claims Outstandin inning of the vear 9,23,866 6,10,988 45,784 64,396 9,69,650 6,75,384
: ¥ ] p — — _@ET— 38,58, T E CADESREN iiﬁt el FEC f




ﬁrManipa] ﬁCigna ManipalCigna Health Insurance Company Limited
~ Health Irsusarce (Formerly known as CignaTTK Health Insurance Company Limited)
IRDA Registration No. 151 Dated November 13, 2013

Rs '000
< 0 ) H 0 0 0
Commission paid
1 |Direct Commission® 10,81,652 8,86,043 18,247 13,370 _ lngsBssl 889413
2 |Add: Re-insurance Accepted i . " = 2 . i
3 |Less: Comimission on Re-insurance Ceded 1 89,401 74,365 4,146 3.860 93.547 78.225
Net Commission | 9,92,251 8.11,678 14,101 9,510 10,06,352 8,21,188
Brealk-up of the expenses [Gross) incurred 1o procure
busi to be furnished as per details indi d below:
Agents 308,347 6,876 5,041 3,89,689 3,13,388
Brokery 2,85012 (1,879 5401 3,70,198 2,90,413
Corporate Agency 2,36,995 13,212 2,922 3,32,730 2,359,917
Referral - - k - -
Qthers

e Jals = sl OO [
*Includes an amount «f Rs 119,109 Ihuusand during Ihe period Ended 3'.I.st M:irr.h 2022 (prevmus period ended 315t March 2021 Rs 124, 817 thousand) towards Reward or Remuneration to Agents
& Intermediaries

s




ManipalCigna Health Insurance Company Limited
(Formerly known as CignaTTK Health Insurance Company Limited)
IRDA Registration No. 151 Dated November 13, 2013

wrManipal #Cigna

Health &

Rs '000
0 ded ded ded ded ded 0 ded
i 0 0 0 0 0 0
dited en d fAud d
a0 eo eo eo eo 0

1 Employees’ remuneration & welfare benefits 16,68,628 16,49,372 25,042 21,437 16,93,670 16,70,808

2 Travel, conveyance and vehicle running expenses 14,908 3,589 224 47 15,132 3,636

3 Training expenses 64,535 {837) 969 (11} 65,504 {848)

4 Rents, rates & taxes 89,517 84,800 1,343 1,102 90,860 85,902

S |Repairs 1,839 {1,049) 28 (14) 1.867 {1,063}

6 Printing & stationery 11,927 15,694 179 204 12,106 15,898

7 Communication 38,062 43,824 571 570 38,633 44,394

8 Legal & professions! charges 2,25,619 2,25,888 3,386 2,936 2.29.005 2,28.824
9 Auditors' fees, expenses etc

{a) as auditor {Statutory Auditor) 2,167 1,974 33 26 2,200 2,000

{b) as adviser or in any other capacity, in respect of - - - - - -

(i} Taxation matters [Tax Audit) 99 99 1 1 100 100

(1) Insurance matters - - - - . -

(i) Management services: and . - - - - -

{c} in any other capacity - Others 198 197 2 3 200 200

{d) out of pocket expenses 45 20 1 0 46 20

10 Advertisement and publiclty 12,09,267 8,29,146 18,148 10,776 12,27,415 8,39,922

11 Interest & Bank Charges 28372 32,405 426 421 28,798 32,826

12 |Others

Mermbership and Subscription Fees 5,112 5.230 77 68 5,189 5,298

Infarmation Technology Related Expenses 1,62,102 1.43,529 2,433 1,865 1.64,535 1.45.394

Equipments, Suftware and amenities - Usage Cost 44,479 54,643 668 710 45,147 55,353

Business Promotion 1,88,510 18,318 2,829 238 1,91,339 18,557

Office Expenses 28,449 23,613 427 307 28,876 23,920

Policy Related Expenses 36,444 19,903 547 259 36,991 20,162

Directors Sitting Fees 4,433 4,294 67 56 4,500 4,350

Miscellaneous Expenses 257 3,865 4 50 261 3.915

Foreign Exchange Gain/Loss 822 238 12 3 835 241

13 D: iati 93,462 90,653 1,403 1,178 94,865 91,831
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ManipalCigna Health Insurance Company Limited

(Formerly known as CignaTTK Health Insurance Company Limited)
IRDA Registration No. 151 Dated November 13, 2013

Rs '000
As at 31st March As at 31st March
Particulars 2022 2021
Audited Audited
1 Authorised Capital 1,50,00,000 1,00,00,000
150,00,00,000 (Previous Year: 1,000,000,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each
2 Issued Capital | 1,11,76,186 94,19,022
1,117,618,566 (Previous Year: 941,902,173) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each
3 Subscribed Capital 1,11,76,186 94,19,022
1,117,618,566 (Previous Year: 941,902,173) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each |
4 Called-up Capital 1,11,76,186 94,19,022

1,117,618,566 (Previous Year: 941,902,173) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each

Less : Calls unpaid

Add : Equity Shares forfeited (amount originally paid up)

Less : Par Value of Equity Shares bought back

Less : Preliminary Expenses

Less : Expenses including commission or brokerage on underwriting or subscription of

shares
LS —
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frManipal ¥ Cigna ManipalCigna Health Insurance Company Limited

— Heallly insurance

(Formerly known as CignaTTK Health Insurance Company Limited)

IRDA Registration No. 151 Dated November 13, 2013

As at 31st March 2022

As at 31st March 2021

Shareholder
Number of Shares % of Holding Number of Shares % of Holding
Promoters i 18
- Indian 56,99,85,492 51% 48,03,70,108 51%
- Foreign 54,76,33,074 49% 46,15,32,065 . 49%
Others
TOTAL . - il ~ 1,11,76,18,566 5
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?Manipal ¥Cigna ManipalCigna Health Insurance Company Limited

——— Hmaith Ingurance

(Formerly known as CignaTTK Health Insurance Company Limited)
IRDA Registration No. 151 Dated November 13, 2013

Particulars

As at 31st March
2022

Audited

Rs '000
As at 31st March
2021

Audited

CapitaI_Reserve

Capital Redemption Reserve

Share Premium

35,41,464

BIWN R

General Reserves

$32,98,637|

Less: Debit balance in Profit and Loss Account

Less: Amount utilized for Buy-back

(%3]

Catastrophe Reserve

[s)]

Other Reserves

Balance of Profit in Pfofit & Loss Account

0] e e
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firManipal ¥ Cigna  ManipalCigna Health Insurance Company Limited

Hmalth irmurance

(Formerly known as CignaTTK Health Insurance Company Limited)
IRDA Registration No. 151 Dated November 13, 2013

Rs '000
As at 31st March As at 31st March
Particulars 2022 2021

Audited Audited
1 9% Non-Convertible Debentures 11,10,000 4,30,000
2 Banks - -
3 Financial Institutions - -
4 Others - -
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ManipalCigna Health Insurance Company Limited
(Formerly known as CignaTTK Health Insurance Company Limited)

IRDA Registration No. 151 Dated November 13, 2013

Particulars

In India

LONG TERM INVESTMENTS

As at 31st March
2022
Audited

Rs '000
As at 31st March
2021
Audited

Government securities and Government guaranteed bonds including Treasury Bills (Refer Note 1)

7,34,670

535,182

Other Approved Securities

7,93,459

518,703

Other Investments

__(a) Shares

(aa) Equity

{bb) Preference

{b) Mutual Funds

{c) Derivative Instruments

(d) Debentures/ Bonds

2,61,468

1,51,328

(e) Other Securities
(f) Subsidiaries

(g) Investment Properties-Real Estate

Investments in Infrastructure and Social Sector

7,84,692|

6,93,675

Other than Approved Investments

Less : Provisions for doubtful debts

Sub-total

TOTAL OF LONG TERM INVESTMENTS

25,74,289

18,98,888

SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

Government securities and Government guaranteed bonds including Treasury Bills

98,286

N

Other Approved Securities

2,00,718

Other Investments

{a) Shares

(aa) Equity

{bb) Preference

(b) Mutual Funds

18,697

11,775

{c) Derivative Instruments

(d) Debentures/ Bonds

1,00,325

3,03,047

(e) Other Securities - Certificate of Deposit/Commercial Paper

{f) Subsidiaries

(g) Investment Properties-Real Estate

Investments in Infrastructure and Social Sector

3,00,306

Other than Approved Investments

1,305

Less : Provisions for doubtful debts

Sub-total

1,305

TOTAL OF SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

i — =T LB

8,17,151

2

Aggregate historical cost of investments other than listed equity securities and derivative instruments is Rs.2,791,282 Thousand (Previous Year - Rs.2,720,756

Thousand). Aggregate market value of such investments as at 31.03.2022 is Rs. 2,743,776 Thousand (Previous Year - Rs. 2,718,986 Thousand)

JRDA vide circular no : IRDAI/F&A/CIR/CPM/056/03/2016, dated 04th April 2016, the Company has segregated the Policyholders and Shareholders funds.

ves




ﬁrfr\{lanipal ¥Cigna ManipalCigna Health Insurance Company Limited
(Formerly known as CignaTTK Health Insurance Company Limited)
IRDA Registration No. 151 Dated November 13, 2013

- Health insyrance - - e

Rs '000
. As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021
Particulars
Audited Audited
In India —
N |LONG TERM INVESTMENTS B
1 Government securities and Government guaranteed bonds including Treasury Bills (Refer Note 1) - | - 12,47,842| 8,46,576
2 Other Approved Securities 14,07,608 6,78,809
3 Other Investments - -
{a) Shares -
{aa) Equity - =
(bb) Preference - il 0 - -
{b) Mutual Funds -
(c) Derivative Instruments - -
(d) Debentures/ Bonds 14,56,824 12,58,650
(e) Other Securities - -
{f) Subsidiaries -
(g) Investment Properties-Real Estate - -
4 Investments in Infrastructure and Social Sector 12,76,220 11,19,008
5 Other than Approved Investments - -
Less : Provisions for doubtful debts
Sub-total - -
TOTAL OF LONG TERM INVESTMENTS 53,88,494 39,03,043
SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS - -
1 Government securities and Governrment guaranteed bonds including Treasury Bills 2,50,640 2,97,517
2 Other Approved Securities - 2,54,559
3 Other Investments - -
(a) Shares - =
(aa) Equity ] =
{bb) Preference - -
(b) Mutual Funds 1,00,668 5,85,750
- (c) Derivative Instruments 2 =
(d) Debentures/ Bonds 554,137 1,00,108
(e} Other Securities - Certificate cf Deposit/Commercial Paper - 7
(f) Subsidiaries ks +
(g) Investment Properties-Real Estate o .
Investments in Infrastructure and Social Sector 2,02,538 1,50,006
5 Other than Approved Investments 7,792 14,403
Less : Provisions for doubtful debts o = 2
Sub-total 7,792 14,403
TOTAL OF SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS 1115775 14,02,343
i k] T TR e N TS R R ! = A et SN o, mialSes Forly —nl ] SRR RGO 5305386
Notes:
Aggregate historical cost of investments other than listed equity securities and derivative instruments is Rs.6,463,630 Thousand (Previous Year - Rs.4,733,762
1 Thousand). Aggregate market value of such investments as at 31.03.2022 is Rs. 6,353,738 Thousand (Previous Year - Rs. 4,726,733 Thousand)
2 IRDA vide circular no : IRDAI/F&A/CIR/CPM/056/03/2016, dated 04th April 2016, the Company has segregated the Policyholders and Shareholders funds.




wrManipal ¥Cigna  ManipalCigna Health Insurance Company Limited

Health Inpurance ———

(Formerly known as CignaTTK Health Insurance Company Limited)
IRDA Registration No. 151 Dated November 13, 2013

Rs '000

As at 31st March As at 31st March
Particulars 2022 2021
Audited Audited
1 SECURITY-WISE CLASSIFICATION
Secured
{a) On mortgage of property
(aa) In India - -

(bb) Outside India - o
{b) On Shares, Bonds, Govt. Securities = =
(c) Others - =

Unsecured
j |TOTAL : H
2 BORROWER-WISE CLASSIFICATION
(a) Central and State Governments - -
(b} Banks and Financial Institutions - -
(c}) Subsidiaries & -
{d} Industrial Undertakings - =

PERFORMANCE-WISE CLASSIFICATION
(a) Loans classified as standard - -
(aa) In India - -
(bb) Outside India - -
(b} Non-performing loans less provisions - -
(aa) In India - -

(b
| TOTAL

4 TURITY-WISE CLASSIFICATION

b) Outside India__ _ ] —— _ = —_=__ =

(a) Short Term - -
|(b) Long




ﬂ’rMaﬂRE‘:\liClgna ManipalCigna Health Insurance Company Limited
(Formerly known as CignaTTK Health Insurance Company Limited)
IRDA Registration No. 151 Dated November 13, 2013

Rs ‘000

Goadwill 3 . K . A = . - 5 E

Intangibles {Software) 1,45,941 1,19,621 - 2,65,562 92,434 58,805 - 1,51,239) 1,14.323 53,507

Land-Freehald = - = = b e - = - =

e 38,799 - - 38,799 31,900 2211 - 34,111 4,688 6.899

Furniture & Fittings 11,985 791 {115) 12,661 9,070 {115) 9,988 2,673 2,915

IT Equipments 1,42,987 13,507 {555} 1,55,939 66,097 (501) 96,276 59,663 76,889
17,579 10,709 12,771




frManipal ¥ Cigna ManipalCigna Health Insurance Company Limited

Health Insurance

(FB_rmerIy known as CignaTTK Health Insurance Company Limited)
IRDA Registration No. 151 Dated November 13, 2013

Rs '000
As at 31st March As at 31st March
Particulars 2022 2021
Audited Audited
1 Cash (including cheques, drafts and stamps) 18,977 19,443
2 Bank Balances
(a) Deposit Accounts
[ {aa) Short-term {due within 12 months} 7,54,800 4,72,700
| (bb) Others * 2,500 2,500
(b} Current Accounts 3,22,764 1,69,050
{(c) Others - -
3 Money at Call and Short Notice
(a) With Banks = -
(b) With other Institutions - -
=

* Deposit of Rs 2,500 thousand has been lien marked with bank
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Health Inswrarce —-————-——

ManipalCigna Health Insurance Company Limited

(Formerly known as CignaTTK Health Insurance Company Limited)
IRDA Registration No. 151 Dated November 13, 2013

Particulars

As at 31st March
2022

Audited

Rs '000
As at 31st March
2021
Audited

ADVANCES

1 Reserve deposits with ceding companies - -
2 Application money for investments - -
3 Prepayments 29,987 29,591
4 Advances to Directors/Officers - =
5 Advance tax paid and taxes deducted at source (Net of provision for taxation) 3,996 3,409
6 |Others
Security Deposits 41,373 38,854
Advance to Employees against expenses 10,312 3,848
Less : Provisions for doubtful debts (4,015) (2,703)
Sub-total 6,297 1,145
Advance to others 60,591 28,600
= [IFES AR s %, - Cimpal 30159
OTHER ASSETS
1 Income accrued on investments 2,52,979 1,79,641
2 Qutstanding Premiums 8,484 3,748
3 Receivable from Agents N 4,773 7,176
Less : Provisions for doubtful debts (4,773) {5,480)
Sub-total - 1,696
4 Recoverable unallocated premium 4,320 2,686
Less : Provisions for doubtful debts (2,944) (1,753)
Sub-total 1,376 933
5 Excess refund recoverable from policyholders 2,336 1,554
Less : Provisions for doubtful debts (1,915) (758)
Sub-total 421 796
6 Excess Claim recoverable 1,568 2,852
Less : Provisions for doubtful debts (1,276) (77)
Sub-total 292 2,775
7 _|Foreign Agencies Balances = =
8 Due from other entities carrying on insurance business (including reinsurers) - -
9 Due from subsidiaries/ holding - -
10 Deposit with Reserve Bank of India - -
11 Others -
Cenvat/ Input Tax Credit 22,907 30,409
Less : Provisions for doubtful debts - (2,609)
Sub-total 22,907 27,800
Investment For Unclaimed Amount* 13,861 13,418
Income on Investment for Unclaimed Amount 1,873 1,522
Sundry Receivable - _
e e BT L O = - ~ia W oy _3,02,193
., 10‘ I A‘jEITE‘HE# — NI DO R  a,64437] 5

wr

* Investment for Unclaimed Amount includes reinvestment of Income on Investment for Unclaimed Amount
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Meallhy Inturance

ManipalCigna Health Insurance Company Limited

(Formerly known as CignaTTK Health Insurance Company Limited)
IRDA Registration No. 151 Dated November 13, 2013

Rs '000
As at 31st March ~ As at 31st March
Particulars 2022 2021
Audited Audited

1 Agents’ Balances 91,359 82,666
2 Balances due to other insurance companies 37,911 11,745
3 Deposits held on re-insurance ceded - -
4 Premiums received in advance 82,655 1,84,209
5 Unallocated Premium 6,33,364 3,31,033
6 Unclaimed Amount of Policyholders (Refer note 3.16 of Sch 16) 12,218 9,413
7 Income on Unclaimed Amount of Policyholders 1,873 1,875
8 Sundry creditors 58,697 37,529
9 Due to subsidiaries/ holding company = -
10 Claims Outstanding* 10,62,551 9,69,651
11 Due to Officers/ Directors = -

12 Others - |
Statutory Dues 2,26,900 2,07,203
Refund Payable - Premitm 13,901 20,210
Provision for expenses 7,33,734 6,06,377
Contracts for Investments = <
Stale Cheque - 117
Employee Related Liability 5,257 1,377
Claims Payable 4,492 2,013
73,295

Interest accrued and due on Borrowings

own net of reinsurance

Fizs
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———— Health Insurance

ManipalCigna Health Insurance Company Limited

(Formerly known as CignaTTK Health Insurance Company Limited)
IRDA Registration No. 151 Dated November 13, 2013

Rs '000
As at 31st March  As at 31st March
Particulars 2022 2021

Audited Audited
1 |Reserve for Unexpired Risk 46,71,005 35,80,972
2 For taxation (less advance tax paid and taxes deducted at source) . -
3 For proposed dividends o - -
4 For dividend distribution tax | - -

5 Others

Provision for Gratuity 55,891 48,954
Provision for Leave Encashment 26,599 33,777
Deferred Tax Liability - -
Freelook Reserve 6,367 4,443

Reserve for Premium Deficiency

y 753




ﬁrMaﬂﬁa! FCigna  ManipalCigna Health Insurance Company Limited
(Formerly known as CignaTTK Health Insurance Company Limited)
IRDA Registration No. 151 Dated November 13, 2013

Rs'000

{‘i‘o the extent not written off or adjustedj
As at 31st March  As at 31st March

Particulars 2022 2021
Audited Audited
1 Discount Allowed in issue of shares/ debentures - -
2 QOthers = =
| ;iﬁjﬁ;_;f__ = cLaleiE . sk =TI I e e | R 2 [ e *Q,

riss




16 - Significant accounting policies and Notes to Financial Statements

1. Background

ManipalCigna Health Insurance Company Limited (erstwhile known as CignaTTK Health Insurance
Company Limited) was incorporated on 12t March 2012, as a company under The Companies Act, 1956.
The Company received the license to commence business from the Insurance Regulatory and
Development Authority of India (IRDA!) on 13t November 2013, to transact and underwrite health
Insurance business under the miscellaneous segmentin India.

The Company is a joint venture between Manipal Education and Medical Group india Private Limited
(11.07%), MEMG Fund Advisors LLP{39.93%), and Cigna Holdings Overseas, Inc. (49%).

2. Significant Accounting Policies

2.1. Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statementshave been prepared and presented under the historical cost convention, unless
otherwise specifically stated, on the accrual basis of accounting, in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in India (Indian GAAP) and comply with the applicable accounting standards referred
to in section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, and in accordance with the provisions of the Insurance Act,
1938, Insurance Laws (Amendment) Act, 2015 (to the extent notified), Insurance Regulatory and
Development Authority Act, 1999, the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India
(Preparation of Financial Statementsand Auditor’s Report of Insurance Companies Regulations), 2002
(‘the Regulations’) and orders / directions prescribed by the IRDAI in this behalf, the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 (tothe extent applicable), in the manner so required and current practices prevailing
within the insurance industry in India. Accounting policies applied have been consistent with the previous
year, except where differential treatment is required as per new pronouncements made by the regulatory
authorities.

2.2. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, revenue and expenses and disclosure of contingent liabilities in the financial
Statements. The estimates and assumptions used in the accompanying financial statements are based
upon management’s evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances as on the date of the financial
statements. Actual results may differ from the estimates and assumptions used in preparing the
accompanying financial statements. Differences between actualand estimatesare recognised in the year
in which the actual materialises, or are known. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognised
prospectively in the year in which such revision is made.




2.3. Revenuerecognition
(i) Premium

Premium (net of goods and service tax)is recognised as income over the contract period or the period
of risk, whichever is appropriate, on a gross basis. Any subsequent revisions to or cancellations of
premiums are recognised in the year in which they occur. Premium received in advance represents
premium received prior to commencement of the risk.

(i) Interest/dividend income

Interest income is recognised on accrual basis and dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive the dividend is established.

(iii) Premium / discount on purchase ofinvestments

Premium or discount on acquisition, as the case may be, in respect of Debt securities, is amortized
/accreted on yield to maturity (YTM) basis over the period of maturity/ holding.

(iv) Profit / loss on sale of securities

Profit or loss on sale / redemption of securities is recognised on trade date basis and includes effects
of accumulated fair value changes, previously recognised and debited / credited to Fair Value Change,
for specific investments sold / redeemed during the year.

(v) Commission on Reinsurance Ceded

Commission received on reinsurance ceded is recognised as income in the year in which reinsurance
premium is ceded. Profit commission under reinsurance treaties recognised in the year of
determination of the profits as per the terms of the treaties.

2.4, Reinsurance Ceded

Premium ceded on reinsurance is recognised as and when incurred and due and in accordance with the
Reinsurance treaties with the Reinsurer. Any subsequent revision to, refunds or cancellations of premiums
are recognised in the yearin which they occur. o
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2.5, Acquisition costs

Acquisition costs, defined as costs that vary with, and are primarily related to, the acquisition of insurance
contracts viz., commission, rewards and recognition, policy issue expenses etc., are expensed in the year
in which they are incurred.

2.6. Reserve forunexpired risk

Represents that part of the net premium (i.e., premium, net of reinsurance ceded) which is attributable
to, and set aside for subsequent risks to be borne by the Company under contractual obligations on
contract period basis or risk period basis. Effective financial year 2016-17, such reserves are recognised at
50% of Net Written Premium of preceding 12 months basis.

2.7.Premium deficiency

Premium deficiency is recognised for the Company as a whole on an annual basis. Premium deficiency is
recognised if the sum of the expected claim costs, related expensesand maintenance cost (related to claims
handling) exceeds relatad reserve for unexpired risk. The expected claim costs are calculated and duly
certified by the Appointed Actuary.

2.8.Claims

Claims incurred comprises of claims paid (net of recoveries), change in estimated liability for outstanding
claims made following aloss occurrence reported, change in estimated liability for claims incurred but not
reported (‘IBNR’) and claims incurred but not enough reported (‘IBNER’). Further, claims incurred also
include claim related and specific claim settlement costs.

2.9. Claims Incurred but not reported (IBNR) and claims incurred but not enoughreported (IBNER)

IBNR represents that amount of all claims that may have been incurred prior to the end of the current
accounting period but have not been reported or claimed. The IBNR provision also includes provision, if
any, required for claims incurred but not enough reported (IBNER). The said liability is determined based
on actuarial principles by the Appointed Actuary. The methodology and assumptions on the basis of which
the liability has been determined has also been certified by the Actuary to be appropriate, in accordance
with guidelines and norms issued by the Institute of Actuaries of India in concurrence with the IRDAI and,
accordingly, the liability determinedis certified as adequate by the Actuary.

V754
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2.10.Property Plant and Equipment and Depreciation / Amortisation
(i) Tangible assets

Tangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided on the
straight-line method, on pro-rata basis from the month in which the asset is ready for use, in
accordance with the provisions of Schedule 1l of the Companies Act, 2013. All assets individually
costing up to Rs. 5,000 are fully depreciated/ mortised in the year in which they are acquired.
Assets not ready for their intended use and other capital work-in-progress are carried at cost,
comprising direct cost and related incidental expenses.

(ii) Intangible assets

Intangible assets comprising software are stated at cost less amortisation. Significant
improvements to software are capitalised and amortised over the remaining useful life of original
software. All assets individually costing up to Rs. 5,000 are fully depreciated / amortised in the
year in which they are acquired. Assets not ready for their intended use and other capital work-
in-progress are carried at cost, comprising direct cost and related incidental expenses.

(iii) Depreciation
Estimated Useful Life as

Asset Class Useful Life | perCompanies

Act, 2013
Information Technology Equipment — Servers and Network 6 years 6 years
Information Technology Equipment — End-user devises 3 years 3 years
Computer Software 3 years 3years
Office Equipment > years 5 years
Furniture and Fixtures™ 5 years 10yyears

The Estimated useful life of leasehold Improvements is 5 Years or remaining lease period which is
shorter. Software, other than perpetual software, are amortized over their respective useful lives.

* |n respect of furniture & fixtures life of the asset has been assessed as five years, considering the
nature of the asset, the estimated usage, operating conditions of the asset and past replacement
history.
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2.11.Investments

Investments are recorded on trade date at cost. Cost includes brokerage, transactiontaxes as applicable,
etc. and excludes pre-acquisition interest, if any.

(i) Classification:

Investments maturing within twelve months from the balance sheet date and investments made with the
specific intention to dispose of within twelve months from the balance sheet date, are classified as short-
term investments. Investments other than short term investments are classified as long-terminvestments.

(i) Valuation:
Debt Securities

All debt securities are considered as ‘held to maturity’ and, accordingly, stated at historical cost and are
adjusted for amortization of premium or accretion of discount on yield to maturity (YTM) basis in the
revenue accounts and profit and loss account over the period held to maturity /holding. The realized gain
or loss on the securities is the difference between the sale consideration and the amortized cost in the
books of the Company as on the date of sale.

Mutual Funds

All mutual fund investments are valued at net asset value as at the Balance Sheet date. Inaccordance with
the Regulations, any unrealised gains / losses arising due to change in fair value of mutual fund
investments are accounted in “Fair Value Change Account”.

The investments have been segregatedinto Policyholder’s and Shareholder’s fund at the security level, as
per the IRDAI circular no. IRDAI/F&A/CIR/056/03/2016 dated April 4, 2016 and, accordingly, investment
income has also stands segregated between Policyholder’s and Shareholder’s fund.

The Company assesses, whether any diminution other than temporary has occurred on its investments in
debt securities or units of mutual fund, at each Balance Sheet date. If any such indication exists, then
carrying value of such investment is reduced to its recoverable amount/market value on the Balance Sheet
date and the impairment loss is recognised in the Profit and Loss Account. Ifat the Balance Sheet date there
is any indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists then impairment loss, earlier
recognised in Profit and loss Account, is reversed in Profit and loss account and the investment is restated

to that extent.

2.12.Employee Retirement Benefits
Short term employee benefits

All employee benefits payable within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short
term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, bonuses, short term compensated absences and
other non-monetary benefits are recognised in the year in which the employee renders the related
service.

Long termemployee benefits
Defined Contribution Plans:
Provident Fund
Provident Fund is a defined contribution scheme and contributions payable by the Company,

Regional Provident Fund Authority are provided on the basis of prescribed percentage of s
are expensed in the year when the contributions are made.




b) Defined Benefit Plans:

Gratuity
Gratuity benefit, a defined benefit scheme, is provided on the basis of actuarial valuation, including
actuarialgains / losses at the balance sheet date and the incremental liability for the year is charged

as ah expense.
¢) OtherLong Term Employee Benefits
Compensated Absences

Compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation including actuarial gains / losses
atbalance sheet date and are charged as expense in the relevant period of valuation.

d) Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP)

The Company follows the intrinsic method for computing the compensation cost, for options granted
under the Plan in accordance with the Accounting Standard and Guidance note issued ICAl. The
difference if any, between the fair value of the share and the grant price, being the compensation
cost is amortised over the vesting period of the options.

2.13.Leases

Lease arrangements, wherein the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset substantially vest
with the lessor, are recagnised as operating leases. Lease Rent under operating leases is recognised in the
revenue account or profit and loss account, as appropriate on a straight line basis, over the period of the
lease.

2.14.Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date
of the transaction. Foreign exchange denominated monetary assets and liabilities are restated at the rates
prevalent at the date of the balance sheet. Exchange difference either on settlement or on translation is
recognised in the Revenue Accounts or Profit and Loss Account, as applicable.

2.15. Income Taxes

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current income taxis measured at the amount expected
to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961. Deferred
income taxes reflect the impact of current year timing differences between taxable income and accounting
income for the year and reversal of timing differences of earlier years. Deferred taxis measured based on
the tax ratesand the taxlaws enacted or substantively enacted as at the Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax
assets are recognised only to the extent that there is reasonable certainty that sufficient future taxable
income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. If the Company has
unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward tax losses, deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is
virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that such deferred tax assets can be realized against
future taxable profits. At each Balance Sheet date, the Company re-assesses unrecognised deferred tax
assets. It recognizes unrecognised deferred tax assets to the extent that it has become reasonably certain
or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which
such deferred tax assets can be realised.
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2.16. Impairment of assets

The carrying values of assets forming part of any cash generating units at Balance Sheet date are reviewed
for impairment at each balance sheet date. If any indication for such impairment exists, the recoverable
amounts of those assets are estimated and impairment loss is recognised, if the carrying amount of those
assets exceeds their recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the net selling price and
their value in use. Value in use is arrived at by discounting the estimated future cash flows to their present
value based on appropriate discount factor. If at the Balance Sheet date there is any indication that a
previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, then such loss is reversed and the asset is restatedto
that extent.

2.17. Goods and Services Tax

Goods and Services Tax{GST) collected is considered as a liability against which GST paid for eligible input
services, tothe extent claimable, is adjusted and the net liability is remitted to the appropriate authority as
stipulated. Unutilized credits, if any, are carried forward under “Advances and other Assets” in Schedule
12, for adjustment in subsequent years.

2.18. Provisions and Contingencies

A provision is recognised when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of a past event; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable
estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted to their present value and are determined based on
best estimates required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each
balance sheet date and adjusted toreflect the current best estimates.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a
present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or
disclosure is made. Contingent assets are not recognised or disclosed in the balance sheet.

2.19. Earnings pershare

The basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit / loss in the Profit and Loss Account
attributable to the equity shareholders, by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the reporting year. The number of shares used in computing diluted EPS comprises of weighted
average number of shares considered for deriving basic EPS and also the weighted average number of
equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.
Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease
the net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations.

2.20. Segment Reporting

In the case of Health insurance business, based on the primary segments identified under the Insurance
Regulatory and Development Authority (Preparation of Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report of
Insurance Companies) Regulations, 2002, read with AS 17 on “Segment Reporting” issued by Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India, the Company has classified and disclosed segment information for Health
insurance and Personal Accident Insurance.

There are no reportable geographical segments, since all business is writtenin India.

The allocation of revenue and expenses to specific segments is done in the following manner, which is
applied on a consistent basis.

Income and expenditure (including depreciation) which are not directly identifiable to t
segments are apportioned on either of the following, as may be appropriate:




e  Gross written premium; and
e  Number of policies
e Commission

The method of apportionment is decided by the management, based on the nature of the expenses and
their logical correlation with various business segments, wherever possible.

2.21.Receipts and Payments Account

a) Receiptsand Payments Account is prepared and reported using the Direct Method, in conformity with
para 2.2 of the Master Circular on Preparation of Financial Statements - General Insurance Business
dated October 5, 2012, issued by the IRDAI.

b) Cash (including cheques, drafts and stamps)

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term
balances (with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to
insignificant risk of changesin value.

2.22. Unclaimed amount of policyholders

Assets held for unclaimed amount of policyholders is created and maintained in accordance with the
requirement of IRDAI Master Circular on “Unclaimed Amounts of Policyholders” dated July 25, 2017 and
Investment Regulations, 2016 as amended from time totime:

Unclaimed amount of policyholders is invested in money market instruments and / or fixed deposits of
scheduled banks which is valued at historical cost or market value whichever is lower.

Income on unclaimed amount of policyholders (net of fund management charges) is credited to the
respective unclaimed account and is accounted for on an accrual basis.

2.23,.Share & debentureissue expenses

The share and debenture issue expenses shall be written off to the Profit and Loss Account in the same
financial year in which they are incurred.
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3. Notes to Accounts forming part of Financial Statements

3.1 Contingent Liabilities

Rs’ 000
Particulars As at March As at March

31st2022 31st2021
Partly paid-up investments Nil Nil
Claims, other than those under policies, not acknowledged as debts Nil Nil
Underwriting commitments outstanding Nil Nil
Guaranteesgiven by or on behalf of the Company Nil Nil
Statutory demands / liabilities in dispute, not provided for 9,081 9,081
Reinsurance obligations to the extent not provided for in accounts Nil Nil
Insurance related claims / mis-selling disputed by the Company, to
the extent not provided / reserved 40,040 15,560

3.2 All assets of the Company are free from encumbrances, other than those disclosed in Schedule 11 of the
financial statements.

3.3 Capital Commitments:

Commitments made and outstanding for acquisition of fixed assets amount to Rs. 72,356 thousand
(Previous Year Rs. 58,253 thousand).
3.4 Premium less reinsurance written duringthe year:
Rs’ 000
Particulars For theyearended | Fortheyearended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

In India 9,342,014 7,161,944

QOutside India - -

Total 9,342,014 7,161,944

No premium income is recognized on “varying risk pattern” basis.

3.5 Provision for Free Look period
The Provision for Free Look period is Rs. 6,367 thousand (previous year Rs. 4,443 thousand), as certified by
the Appointed Actuary.

3.6 Claims:

3.6.1 The company hasreceived intimation and paid claims (net of reinsurance and excluding TPA fees and Claim
investigation fees) amounting to Rs. 6,039,320 thousand during the year ended March 312022 (Previous
year Rs. 3,447,237 thousand).

3.6.2 The amount of claims outstanding (net of reinsurance) to be settled for the year ended March 31t 2022 is

Rs. 1,062,551 thousand (Previous year Rs. 969,651 thousand).
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3.6.3 Claims paid to claimantsin / outside
Claim investigation fees):

Particulars

In India
Outside India
Total

3.6.4 Ageing of claims outstanding is set out in the table below

Particulars
More than six months
Others
Total

3.7 Percentage ofBusiness Sector—Wise

As at March 31512022
Gross
Sector  Written N° _Of N?' of
. Policies Lives
Premium

Rural 2,403,331 83,236 3,664,802
Social 3, 055 216,144
Urban 7,426,387 245,702 4,987,419
Total 9,861,773 332,938 8,868,365

India are as under (net of reinsurance and excluding TPA fees and

Fortheyearended Fortheyearended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
5,730,853 3,173,613
308,467 273,624
6.039.320 3,447,237
Rs’ 000
Fortheyearended Fortheyearended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
15,067 4,289
1,047,484 965,362
1,062,551 969,651
Rs’000
As at March 31512021
% of Gross % of
Gross . No. of No. of Gross
Written ert?en Policies Lives Weritten
Premium Premium Premium
24.37% 1,734,441 70,787 2,142,785 22.96%
0.33% 23,295 1 157,076 0.31%
75.30% 5,797,176 234,194 2,934,152 76.73%
100% 7,554,912 304,982 5,234,013 100%

* The percentage of social sector lives is 4.13% of total lives in the preceding financial year

3.8 Extent of Risk Retained and Reinsured

Particulars
Risk Retained (%)

Risk Reinsured (%)

95%
5%

3.9 Value of unsettled Contracts in relation to Investments

Particulars
Purchase where deliveries are pending

Sales where payments are overdue

As at March 31st2022 As at March 31st 2021

95%
5%

Rs’000

As at March 31st 2022 As at March 31st2021

Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil

All Investments are made in accordance with Insurance Act, 1938 and Insurance Regulatory and Development

Authority of India (Investment) Regulations, 2016 and are performing assets.

Mumbai
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3.10 Employee Benefit Plans

3.10.1 Defined Contribution Plan

The Company has recognized following amounts towards defined contribution plans as expenses in the

Revenue Account:

Rs’000

Particulars As at March 31st 2022

As at March 31st2021

Provident Fund 73,107

66,260

3.10.2 Defined Benefit Plan

3.10.2.1 GratuityPlan

Gratuity liability arises on retirement, withdrawal, resignation and death of an employee. The aforesaid
liability is calculated on the basis of actuarial valuation as per the projected unit credit method. Disclosure

as per AS-15 (Revised) an ‘Employee Benefits’ is as under:

i.  Assumptions Used:
Rs’000
Particulars As at March 31st 2022 As at March 31st 2021
. Indian Assured Lives Indian Assured Lives
Mortality . )
Mortality (2012-14) Mortality (2012-14)
Discount Rate 5.65% 5.30%
Rate of increase in compensation 7.00% 7.00%
) Between46.61% & 13% Between46.61% & 13%
Withdrawal rate . )
depending on age band depending on age band

ii. Changesin benefit obligations:

Rs’000

Particulars As at March 31st 2022 As at March 31st 2021
Present value of obligations atthe
beginning of year 48,954 42,674
Interest cost 2,334 2,957
Current Service Costs 12,430 17,363
Past Service Cost Nil Nil
Benefits Paid (8,257) (6,732)
Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligation 430 (7,308)
Transfer In /(Out) Obligation Nil Nil
Present value of obligations at end
of year 55,891 48,954

s )




iii. Amounts recognizedin Profit & Loss Account:

Rs.’000
Particulars As at March 31st 2022 As at March 31st 2021
Current Service Cost 12,430 17,363
Interest Cost 2,334 2,957
Past Service Cost Nil Nil
Unrecognized Past Service Cost — . .
) Nil Nil
Non-vested benefits
Expected Return on Plan Assets Nil Nil
t Actuarial (Gain}/I i
Net Actuarial (Gain)/loss recognized 430 (7,308)
for the year
Transfer In/ (Out) Obligation Nil Nil
Amount recognized in Profit & loss 15,193 13,012
Account
iv. Amounts recognized in Balance Sheet:
Rs.000’
Particulars As at March 31st 2022 As at March 31st 2021
Present value of obligations at end of (55,891) (48,954)
the year
Fair Value of Plan Assets at end of year Nil Nil
Funded Status Nil Nil
Unrecognized Past Service Cost — Non- . .
) Nil Nil
vested benefits
Net Asset/(Liability) recognized in the (55,891) (48,954)
balance sheet
v. Balance Sheet Reconciliation:
Rs.000’
Particulars As at March 31st 2022 As at March 31st 2021
Opening Net Liability/(Asset) 48,954 42,674
Current Service Cost 12,430 17,363
Interest Cost 2,334 2,957
Net Actuarial (Gain)/loss recognized 430 (7,308)
for the year
Contribution Paid Nil Nil
Transfer In/ (Out) Obligation Nil Nil
Benefits Paid (8,257) (6,732)
Past service cost Nil Nil
Closing Net Liability/{Asset) 55,891 48,954
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3.10.2.2 Leave Encashment

Leave Encashment liability is determined on the basis of Actuarial valuation carried as on 31st March

2022.
Rs.”000
Particulars As at March 31st 2022 As at March 31st 2021
Opening Balance 33,777 60,150
Add : Provision made during the year 4,058 (17,530)
Less : Benefits paid (11,236) (8,843)
Closing Balance 26,599 33,777
Breakup of provision for Leave encashment
Rs.'000
Particulars As at March 31st 2022 As at March 31st 2021
Current Liability* 10,034 12,664
Non-Current Liability 16,565 21,113
Net Liability 26,599 33,777
*Current Liability is calculated as expected benefits for next 12
months

3.11 Managerial Remuneration

In terms of the disclosure requirements of Para 9 of IRDAI Corporate Governance Guidelines for Insurers in
India, 2016, the elements of remuneration paid to Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer (MD & CEO),
all other directors and Key Management Persons are as follows:-
(a) The Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer (MD & CEQ)is remunerated interms of the approval
granted by IRDALI. Details of the MD & CEO’s remuneration included in employee remuneration and
welfare benefits are as follows:

Rs’ 000
Particulars As at March 31st2022 As at March 31st 2021
Salaries and Allowances 40,519 42,161
Contribution to Provident Fund 1,604 1,458
Perquisites* 243 216
Total 42,366 43,835

*Perquisites to the extent paid / incurred by the company are according to the books of accounts.

(b) During the year, the Company has paid an amount of Rs. 4500 thousand (previous year Rs.4350 thousand)
has been paid as fees to Non-executive Directors for attending board/Committee meetings.

(c) Details of the elements of remuneration paid to Key Management Persons (KMPs) excluding whole time
director as defined under Corporate Governance Guidelines for Insurers in India, 2016, are as follows:-

Rs’000
Particulars As at March 31st2022 As at March 31st 2021
Salaries and Allowances 121,462 124,776
Contribution to Provident Fund 4,493 4,602 MBA|
Perquisites 1,730 1,262
Total 127,685 130,640

In addition to the above, Managing Directorsand KMPs are entitled to ESOPs under the Compa
Scheme. Mumbal



Expenses towards gratuity funding and leave encashment provision are determined actuarially on an overall
company basis annually and accordingly have not been considered in the above information.
3.12 Outsourcing,business development and marketing supportexpenses

Expenses relating to outsourcing, business development and marketing support are:

Rs ‘000
Particulars As at March 31st2022 | As at March 31st2021
Outsourcing Expenses* 1,881,113 1,422,517
Marketing Support 1,598 12,903

* Also includes activities which was suggested by IRDAI to consider as outsourcing.

3.13  Details of penalactions taken by various Govt. authorities during year ended March 31st 2022
Rs’ 000
Sr.No. Authority Non- ~Penalty Penalty Penalty
Compliance/ | Awarded Paid Waived/
Violation Reduced
Insurance Regulatory and
1. Development Authority Nil Nil Nil Nil
2, Service Tax/GST Authority Nil Nil Nil Nil
3. Income Tax Authority Nil Nil Nil Nil
4. Any Other Tax Authority Nil Nil Nil Nil
Enforcement Directorate/
5. Adjudicating  Authority/Tribunal
or any Authority under FEMA Nil Nil Nil Nil
Registrar of Companies/
6. NCLT/CLB/  Department  of
Corporate Affairs or any Authority
under Companies
Act, 1956 Nil Nil Nil Nil
Penalty awarded by any Court/
7. Tribunal for any matter including
claim settlement but excluding
Compensation Nil Nil Nil Nil
Securities and Exchange Board of
8. India Nil Nil Nil Nil
9. Competition Commission of India Nil Nil Nil Nil
Any other Central/State/Local
10. | Govt. / Statutory Authority (Tariff
Advisory Committee) Nil Nil Nil Nil
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3.14

3.15

Leases

The Company’s operating leasing arrangements are for office and residential premises and other related
amenities. In respect of premises taken on operating lease, the agreements are generally mutually
renewable or cancellable by the lessor/lessee.

An amount of Rs. 77,282 thousand (previous year: Rs. 90,483 thousand) towardssaid lease payments has
been recognized in the statement of revenue account.

The details of future rentals under Non-cancellable operating Leases are as under:

Rs ‘000
Particulars As at March 31st As at March 31st
2022 2021
Not Laterthan1 Year 9,569 48,289
Laterthan 1 year and not later than5 years Nil 11,399
Laterthan5 years Nil Nil

Micro & Small Scale Business Entities

The Company has a process of identification of suppliers registered under the “The Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development (‘MSMED’) Act, 2006” by obtaining confirmations from suppliers.

Detailsare given below:

Rs ‘000
Particulars 315t March 2022 31t March 2021
Principal amount due to suppliers registered under 9,781 268
the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at year end
Interest due to suppliers registered under the - -
MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at year end
Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under 2,341 731

the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during
the year

Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED
Act, to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act,
beyond the appointed day during the year

Interest paid, under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to
suppliers registered under the MSMED Act, beyond
the appointed day during the year

Interest due and payable towards suppliers
registered under MSMED Act, for payments already
made

Further interest remaining due and payable for
earlier years

e /s
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3.16 Details of age-wise analysis of the unclaimed amount ofthe policyholders for the year ended March 31t

2022

Disclosure required by IRDA circular no IRDA/F&A/CIR/Misc/282 /11/2020 dated November 17t 2020 is
tabulated below:

Rs.’000

Particulars

Total
Amount

0-6
Months

7-12
months

13-18
months

19-24
months

25-30
months

31-36
Months

37-120
months

More
than 120
months

Claims settled but not
paid to the
policyholders/benefic
iaries due to any
reasons except under
litigation from the
policyholders/
beneficiaries

963

456

78

12

53

197

165

2

Sum due to the
policyholders/

beneficiaries on
maturity or otherwise

N.A

N.A

N.A

N.A

N.A

N.A

N.A

N.A

N.A

Any excess collection
of the premium/tax
or any other charges
which is refundable
to the policyholders/
beneficiaries eitheras
terms of conditions of
the policy or as per
law or as may be
directed by the
Authority but not
refunded sofar

8,609

3,415

1,328

583

558

292

296

2,137

Cheques issued but
not encashed by the
policyholder/benefici
aries

2,648

146

107

173

199

2023

Accured Investment
Income(ITD)

1,873

Total

14,091

3,415

1,784

807

677

518

692
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Particulars

Opening Balance

Add : Amount transferred to Unclaimed
Fund

Add : Cheques Issued out of the Unclaimed
amount but not encashed by the
Policyholders (To be included only when the

cheques are stale)
Add
Fund

Less : Amount of Claims Paid during the year

: Investment Income to Unclaimed

Less : Amount transferred to SCWF (net of

Claims paid in
transferred earlier)

Closing Balance Unclaimed Amount Fund

respect of amounts

As at 31st Mar 2022
) Income
Policy Dues Accrued
9,413 1,875
9,065
351
6,259 353
12,218 1,873

Rs.'000

As at 31st Mar 2021
) Income
Policy Dues Accrued
8,496 1,451
6,893
424
5,976
9,413 1,875

3.17 Details of age-wise analysis ofthe unclaimed amount of the policyholders for the year ended March 31+

2021

Disclosure required by IRDA circular no IRDA/F&I/CIR/CMP/174/11/2010 dated November 4t 2010 is

tabulated below:

Particulars

Claims settled but not
paid to the
policyholders /
insured’s due to any
reasons except under
litigation from the
insured /
policyholders

Sum due to the
insured /Policyholders
on maturity or
otherwise

Any excess collection
of the premium / tax
or any other charges
whichisrefundableto
the policyholders
either as terms of
conditions of the
policyor as per lawor
as may be directed by
the Authority but not
refunded so far
Cheques issued but
not enchased by the
policvholder/insured
TOTAL

Total
Amount

1,224

N.A

5,268

2,921

0-6
Months

N.A

514

244

758

7-12
months

195

13-18
months

95

19-24
months

330

N.A N.A N.A

960 661 550

159 215 204

1,314 971 1,084

25-30

months

385

N.A

322

187

894

31-36
Months

20

N.A

897

1,265

2,252

More
37-120 ., n120
months
months
129
N.A N.A
1,364
Q
) %
)
647



3.18 Segmentinformation

The operating expenses and investment and other income have been allocated to various segments as per
accounting policies and nctes to the financials disclosed above. Segment revenue and segment results have
been incorporated in the financial statements. However, due to the nature of the business, segment assets
and liabilities have been allocated to the various segments to the extent possible. There are no reportable
geographical segments during the year. Financial information about the business segment is given below:

Rs.'000
Year Ended 31st March 2022 Year Ended 31st March 2021
Particulars Personal Personal
Health Accident Total Health Accident Total
Segmental
Revenue 10,234,895 138,395 10,373,290 79,20,182 1,04,157 80,24,339
SegmentalResult ¥  (941,681) 46,708 (894,971) 2,585 49,380 51,965
Segmental
Liabilities
Net Claims
Outstanding 1,014,767 47,784 1,062,551 9,23,866 45,785 9,69,651
Unexpired Risk
Reserve 4,606,725 64,283 4,671,005  35,36,743 44,229 35,80,972
Premium received
in Advance 82,375 280 82,655 1,84,134 75 1,84,209

Segmental Assets:-

Outstanding

Premiums 8,484 8,484 3,748 3,748
*Segmental result is in line with Revenue Account {Form B-RA)

3.19 Expenses of Management

3.20

The company has allocated expenses of management as per the policy approved by the Board of Directors.
Expenses such as Commission payable to Agents, Brokerage, etc. which are based on premium
procurement for different segments are directly allocated to each segment on actual incurred basis. All
Other Operating expenses which cannot be directly attributed and allocated to any segment are
apportioned on the basis of Gross Premium written for each segment.

The Company had filed an application with IRDA dated 12t May 2021 and 22" April 2022, for forbearance
of the Expenses of Management (EOM) exceeding the allowable limit for FY 21-22 to FY 27-28, and is
awaiting approval. As required under EOM regulation to be read with IRDAI Circular Ref. No.:
IRDA/F&A/CIR/MISC/081 /05/2019 dated May 20, 2019, on preparation of financial statements for FY
2019-20 and onwards, in the current year a sum of Rs.1,743,433 thousand (Previous year Rs.1,528,823
thousand) which is in the excess of expenses of management over the allowable limit has been transferred
from Revenue Account to Profit and Loss account (Shareholder Account).

Deferred Taxes

In accordance with paragraph 18 of AS 22 Accounting for Taxes, stipulates that, in the case of unabsorbed
ciation or carry forward of losses under tax laws, an enterprise recognizes deferred taxassets to the
that it has timing differences, the reversal of which will result in sufficient income, i.e. to the extent
of deferred tax liability, without considering any other evidence regarding future taxable income. In
conformity with the said Paragraph, the Company has recognized Nil deferred tax asset & liability
books. Deferred tax asset & liability represents timing difference on account of Fixed Assets, e
benefits and carryforward business losses as per the above guidance.



3.21 The Company is not required to create an impairment provision during financial year 21-22. In the previous
financial year 20-21, an impairment provision of Rs. 189,695 thousand created against investment in Profit
and Loss Account under the head “provisions —diminution in value of investment”.

3.22 Related Party Disclosures
As per Accounting Standard-18 Related Party Disclosures, the related parties with whom the Company has
transacted during the year and the related amounts have been provided below.
(a) Names of the related parties and description of relationship as per Companies Act, 2013:
1. Cigna Holding Overseas Inc.
2. Manipal Education and Medical Group India Private Limited.
3. MEMG Fund Advisors LLP
4, Prasun Sikdar—MD & CEO
5. Chandrima Sikdar- Relative of MD & CEO
6. Parthiv Sikdar — Relative of MD & CEO
7. Pritha Sikdar — Relative of MD & CEO
8. Other — entities in which directors have interest or concern
8.1 Health Vista India Pvt. Ltd.
8.2 Quess Corp Limited.
8.3 Manipal Health Enterprises Private Limited
8.4 Stempeutics Research Pvt. Ltd.
8.5 Manipal Global Education Services Pvt. Ltd.
8.6 MEMG International India Private Limited
8.7 Merittrac Services Private Limited.
8.8 UNEXT Learning Private Limited
Rs’000
Relationship Related Party Nature‘of Year Ended Year Ended As at 31st As at 31st
Transactions March 22 March 2021 March 2022 March 2021
Capital
Shareholder TTK Partners LLP Contrliobution 816,401
Capital
Shareholder Cigna Holdings Contribution
Overseas, Inc. (inc! Premiumy} 999,990 8,913,948 7,913,959
Manipal Education Capital
Shareholder and Medical Group Contribution
India Private Limited (incl Premium) 1,237,300 1,237,000
. Capital
shareholder ':’L'EMG Fund Advisors, ¢ iribution 1,000,000 2,130,000 4,566,401 2,750,000
(incl Premium)
Manipal Education
Shareholder and Medical Group Issue of 340,000 340,000
India Private Limited Debentures
Shareholder Manipal Education Interest on
and Medical Group 15,593 15,593
India Private Limited Debentures
MD&CEO ) Remuneration 42,366 43,835
Prasun Sikdar .
Premium 42 21
Relative of Mrs. Chandrima Premium 42 23
MD&CEO Sikdar
R'\;I;;‘é:gf Parthiv Sikdar Premium 20
Relative of , . Premium 10 -
MD&CEO Pritha Sikdar P A
Ot.h.er—' Manipal Global 68,851 25,270 N - Mu
entities in . . . \
. Education Services % 11
which )

directors have

Pvt. Ltd



interestor
concern

Other -
entities in
which
directors have
interest or
concern
Other -
entities in
which

directors have
interest or
concern

Other -
entities in
which

directors have
interest or
concern
Other -
entities in
which
directors have
interest or
concern
Other -
entities in
which
directors have
interest or
concern
Other -
entities in
which

directors have
interest or
concern
Other -
entities in
which
directors have
interest or
concern

Manipal Hea
Enterprises Pvt Ltd
MEMG International
India Private Limited
MerittracServices
Private Limited
Stempeutics Research
Pvt Ltd

UNEXT LEARNING
PRIVATE LIMITED

Manipal Health
Enterprises Private
Limited.

Claims Expenses

Advance
Premium

Manipal Health
Enterprises Pvt Ltd.
MEMG
INTERNATIONAL
INDIA PRIVATE
LIMITED
Stempeutics Research
PvtLtd
MerittracServices
Private Limited
Manipal Global
Education Services Pvt
Ltd
Stempeutics Research Unallocated
PvtLtd Premium
Manipal Global
Education Services
Pvt. Ltd
MEMG International
India Private Limited
MerittracServices
Private Limited
UNEXT LEARNING
PRIVATE LIMITED
Claims

Outstanding
Mani pal Health
Enterprises Pvt Ltd

Claims Payable

Manipal Health
Enterprises Private
Limited

fficeE
Quess Corp. Limited Office Expenses

Health VistaIndia
Private Limited

Expenses

132,661 97,357

4,695

1,275

1,534

6,892

62,518

6,972

5742

623
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(b) Transactions with the Entities

In addition to transactions with related parties disclosed under (a) above, transactions with Manipal and Cigna
entities are disclosed below for better corporate governance.

List of entities:-

1. Cigna European Services (CESL)
2. Cigna HLA Technology Services Company Limited (CHALTS)
3. Cigna APAC Holdings Ltd.
4. Cigna International Corporation (CIC)
5. T A Pai Management Institute
6. Dr TMA PAIl Hospital
7. Sikkim Manipal University
8. lJigsaw Academy Education Private Limited
9. Srishti Manipal Institute of Art Design and Technology
10. Manipal University Jaipur
11. Manipal Health Map
12. Human Care Medical Chari Trust
13. Manipal Hospitals (Jaipur) Private Limited
14. Manipal Hospitals (Dwarka)Private LTD
15. Manipal Academy of Higher Education.
16. Manipal Tata Medical College
17. M/s Columbia Asia Hospital Private Limited
18. Manipal Hospitals Bengaluru Pvt Ltd
19. Manipal Hospitals Pvt. Ltd.
Particulars Group entities (Rs "000)
Description Year Ended Year Ended As at
March 22 March 21 Mar 31st 2022
INCOME:
- Premium from direct business 2,24,188 1,82,962
- Other Income
_EXPECI\:aSiE:; Expenses 2,86,877 1,59,504
Interest on debentures 54,293 38,700
Assets:
Transactions during the year
Other Receivable 209 358 209
LIABILITIES:
Account Balances:-
Issue of Debentures 340,000 770,000
Advance Premium
Interest Payable on debentures 1,24,708
Outstanding Expense Payable 8,870
Unallocated Premium 117,812
Claims Outstanding 16,596
21

Claims Payable

As at

Mar 31st 2021

358

430,000
97,849
73,295
17,097
18,418
14,557
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3.23 Summary of Financial Statements

Total Dividend
Dividend Per Share

Rs ‘000
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st As at 31st As at 31st As at 31st
Mar 2022 Mar 2021 Mar 2020 Mar 2019 Mar 2018
OPERATING RESULTS
Gross Written Premium 9,861,773 75,54,912 57,61,942 48,48,222 34,64,049
Net Premium Income # 9,342,014 71,61,944 54,68,772 45,91,477 32,53,648
Income from Investment @ 380,012 1,81,850 3,33,242 2,48,467 1,51,746
Other Income - - - - -
TOTAL INCOME 9,722,026 73,43,794 58,02,015 48,39,944 34,05,394
Commission 1,006,352 8,21,188 6,30,251 5,93,975 3,75,990
Operating Expenses 3,978,074 32,91,640 28,81,132 28,38,814 22,90,794
Net Incurred Claims 6,283,835 38,59,547 31,03,170 24,31,392 12,32,679
Change in Unexpired Risk Reserve 1,092,169 8,48,277 4,34,415 6,66,304 5,92,257
Operating Profit/Loss (894,971) 51,965 2,36,274 (16,90,541) | (10,86,325)
NON-OPERATING RESULT
Totalincome under shareholders {(16,64,626) (12,26,055) | (15,73,417) 36,512 36,848
account
Profit/(Loss) before Tax (2,559,596) (11,74,090) | (13,37,143) | (16,54,030) | (10,49,476)
Provision for Taxation - - - - -
Profit/(Loss) after Tax (2,559,596) (11,74,090) | (13,37,143) | (16,54,030) | (10,49,476)
MISCELLANEOUS
POLICYHOLDER’S ACCOUNT :
Total Funds 6,504,269 53,05,386 38,68,095 34,51,423 23,65,822
Totalinvestments 6,504,269 53,05,386 38,68,095 34,51,423 23,65,822
Yield on Investments - - - = -
SHAREHOLDER’S ACCOUNT:
Total Funds 2,797,190 27,16,039 21,85,023 19,08,653 9,89,668
Total investments 2,797,190 27,16,039 21,85,023 19,08,653 9,89,668
Yield on Investments
Paid up equity capital 11,176,186 94,19,022 72,89,022 59,08,630 36,47,258
Net Worth 2,106,546 26,66,150 17,10,241 16,39,397 9,86,826
Total Assets 1,10,81,332 93,03,435 68,63,571 60,98,289 42,57,715
il on WerallnvESHmENEs 6.30% 5.04% 9.38% 7.77% 8.43%
(Annualized)
Earnings Per Share (2.48) (1.40) (2.17) (3.42) (3.41)
Book Value Per Share 1.88 2.83 2.35 2.77 2.71

# Net of reinsurance
@ Net of Losses

gs




3.24 Analytical Ratios

Sr.No.

S Uuhsh w N

10

11
12
13
14
15

16

17

Analytical Ratios

Performance Ratios

Gross Direct Premium Growth
Rate

Gross Direct Premium to Net
Worth Ratio

Growth Rate of Net Worth

Net Retention Ratio

Net Commission Ratio

Expenses of Management to
Gross Direct Premium Ratio
Expenses of Management to Net
Written Premium Ratio

Net Incurred Claims to Net
Earned Premium

Combined Ratio

Technical Reserves to Net
Premium Ratio

Underwriting Balance Ratio
Operating Profit Ratio

Liquid Assets to Liability Ratio
Net Earnings Ratio

Returnon Net Worth Ratio
Available Solvency Margin (ASM)
to Required Solvency Margin
(RSM) ratio

NPA Ratio

As at 31st March 2022
Health PA
30% 50%
4,61 0.07
-21%

95% 87%
11% 11%
51%

54%

76%

130%

0.61
-0.37
-32%

0.37
-27%

-121%

1.68

As at 31st March 2021
Health PA

31% 20%
2.80 0.04

56%
95% 91%
11% 11%

55%

59%

61%

119%

0.64

-0.26

-23%

0.63

16%

-44%

2.12

As required by circular reference no IRDA/F&A/CIR/MISC/081/05/2019 on “Preparation of Financial
Statementsfor FY 2019-20 and Onwards” dated May 20, 2019, travel insurance has been clubbed with

health insurance.
Operation loss ratio has been calculated as per master circular IRDA/F&I/CIR/F&A/231/10/2012 dated 05t

October 2012 and IRDA/F&A/CIR/FA/126/07/2013

3.25 Earningspershare
Particulars

Net profit/ (loss) as per Profit & Loss account (Rs '000)
Weighted Average number of Equity Shares used for
calculating EPS

Basic EarningsPer Share

Diluted Earnings Per Share *

* Diluted EPSis restrictedto basic EPS.

As at 31st March 2022

(2,559,596)

1,034,048,884

(2.48)
(2.48)

As at 31st March 2021

(1,174,090)

839,195,324
(1.40)
(1.40)

Murnbai
1



3.26 Borrowings

The Company, in line with IRDAI Regulations, issued Unsecured Non-Convertible Debentures, by way of
Subordinated Debt. The debentures are redeemable after a period of 10 years from the date of issue and
interest being payable subject to solvency ratio maintained as per IRDAI (Other Forms of Capital) Regulations,
2015,

Amountin Rs.’000

Interest
Period Subscriber Debentures Annual Tenure Accrued as
Interest % on 31st
March, 2022
FY 2016-17 Cigna APAC Holdings Ltd 430,000 9% 10 Years 109,942
FY 2021-22 Cigna APAC Holdings Ltd 340,000 9% 10 Years 14,766
Manipal Education & 340,000 9% 10 Years 14,034
FY2021-22 Medical Group India Private
Limited
Total 1,111,000 138,742

Since there are accumulated losses, no Debenture Redemption Reserve has been created. For the Debentures
issued in FY21-22, the Company is in the process of seeking approval from the Authority for accrual/payment.

3.27 Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP)

In FY 2019-20, the Company had had instituted an Employee Stock Option Plan 2019 (“ESOP 2019) to enable
employees of the company to participate in future growth. The eligible employees are granted options to
acquire equity shares of the company.

Under ESOP 2019, during the year 3,825,805 additional options were granted at an exercise price of Rs. 13 per
option. The option will vest over a period of 4 years from the date of grant as given below and are exercisable
over a period of 3 years from the respective dates of vesting. During the year, 6,88,000 options were
lapsed/forfeited. Accordingly, during the year, Nil (Previous year Rs. Nil) options were vested out.

The company has adopted intrinsic value method for computing the compensation cost for the option granted.
Since the exercise price is not less than the intrinsic value of shares on the date of grant, value of option is Nil
and accordingly, no compensation cost is recognized in the books. The fair value of options has been estimated

using Black-Scholes model.

Had the company followed the fair value method for valuing its options for the year, the charge to the Revenue
accountsand Profit and Loss account would have been higher by Rs. 36,184 thousand (Previous year Rs. 32,923
thousand) and losses after tax would have been increased by Rs. 36,184 thousand (Previous year Rs. 32,923
thousand) .

Consequently, the Company’s basic and diluted earnings per share would have been Rs. (2.51) and Rs. (2.51)
respectively.

Movementin the options under ESOP 2019

Particulars As At March 31,2022 As At March 31, 2021

Outstanding at the Beginning of the year 36,286,657 31,786,657

Granted During the year 3,825,805 4,500,000

Exercised during the year MBAI | *
Lapsed during the year 688,000

Outstanding at the end of the year 39,424,462 36,286,657

Unvested at the end of the year
Vested at the end of the year
Weighted average price per Option Rs.3.76 Rs 3.59



Fair Value Methodology: -

The fair value of options has been estimated using Black-Scholes model. The Key assumptions used in Black-
Scholes model for calculation fair value under ESOP 2019 are as follows:

. Risk Free Interest . Expected Expected
Particulars Expected Life
Rate P Volatility dividend yield
5.35%t05.92%
ESOP 2019 (Continuously | HEYEArStOS.5 | 500+ 0335 0%
Years
compounded)
Information in respect of Options outstanding
igh
Particulars Exercise Price (Rs.) No. of Options Weig t?d.Ave'rage
remaining life

ESOP 2019 10 35,598,657 4.6 Yearsto 5.5Years
ESOP 2019 13 3,825,805 4.6 Yearsto 5.5 Years

3.28 ImpactofCOVID 19

Situation arising from second wave of COVID-19 pandemic towards the beginning of the year hasthrown many
unexpected challenges. However, Company believes that robust business model built over the years and also
implemented business continuity plan to ensure the smooth processing of all important business operations.

The Company has assessed its business risks and plans, valuation of policy related liabilities, solvency position
and created adequate buffer to take care of any spurt in the claims. The management continues to closely
monitor the implications of pandemic on its operations and financial statements. However, given the nature
of uncertainties arising from the pandemic, possibility of significant impact on the business cannot be ruled
out. The Shareholders have infused Rs. 200 crores during the current financial year, and are committed to
meet any funding exigencies that may arise from such presently unforeseen uncertainties.

3.29 Codeon Social Security

The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 which would impact the contributions
by the company towards Provident Fund and Gratuity. The Ministry of Labour and Employment has released
draft rules for the Code on Social Security, 2020 on November 13, 2020. The final rules and the effective date
of the code is awaited. The Company will assess the impact and its evaluation once the subject rules are
notified and will give appropriate impact in its financial statementsin the period when the code becomes
effective.
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3.30 Previous yearfigures have been regroupedfor better disclosure purpose, wherever required to conform

tothe currentyear classification:-
Rs.’000
SrNo Regrouped from Regroupedto Period ended Amount
Sch 4 —Operating Expenses Sch 4 —Operating Expenses 31stof March Rs.4,752
1 related to Insurance business relatedto Insurance business 2021
under the category “Business under the category “Legal &
Promotion” Professional Charges”
Sch 4 — Operating Expenses Sch 4 - Operating Expenses 31stof March Rs.18,360
2. related to Insurance business relatedto Insurance business 2021
under the category “Business under the category
Promotion” “Employees’ remuneration &
welfare benefits”

As perourreport ofeven date attached.

Forand on behalfof the Board of Directors.

For CNK & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
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Management Report

In accordance with the provisions of the Insurance Regulatory & Development Authority
(IRDA) (Preparation of Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report of Insurance Companies)
Regulations, 2002 (‘Regulation’) the following Management Report is submitted:

1.

The Certificate of Registration under Section 3 of the Insurance Act, 1938 was granted
by IRDA on 13th November 2013.The Company has paid annual fee for the financial
year 2021-22 as required under Section 3A read with Section 3 of the Insurance Act,
1938.

All the dues payable to the statutory authorities will be duly paid within the due date.

The Company’s Share holding pattern during the year is in accordance with the
requirements of the Insurance Act, 1938 and the Insurance Regulatory and
Development Authority (Registration of Indian Insurance Companies) Regulations,
2000 and during the year there is no transfer of shares

The management has not invested any funds of holders of policies in India, directly or
indirectly as required by IRDA, outside India.

The required solvency margin has been maintained at all times.

The values of all the assets have been reviewed on the date of Balance Sheet and in
management’s belief, the assets set forth in the Balance Sheet are shown in the
aggregate at amounts not exceeding their realizable or market value.

During the financial year 2021-22, ManipalCigna Health Insurance Company Ltd (the
Company) has made progress in the area of Risk Management. There are sound
mitigation practices in place to ensure interests of the stakeholders are safeguarded.

The overall Risk Management is monitored by Risk Management Committee of the
Board and managed by the Chief Risk Officer. The Risk Management Report is shared
with the Committee for ensuring that the Company is in line with its governance
framework.

The Company has a solid “Three layers of Defence” structure comprising of;

a. Head of Departments (HOD) of respective functions
b. Risk Management and Compliance
c. Internal Audit

Together, these three layers in their respective capacities provide a comprehensive
package for risk mitigation.



At an Enterprise level, the Company monitors top risks on regular basis and tracks /
reports the movement of these risks on a Quarterly basis. A Board approved Risk
Management policy is in place which acts as a guiding force while carrying out related
activities.

With an objective to have risk mitigation in place at a Departmental level, the Company
has compiled a repository of risks and controls; in the form of Risk Control Self-
Assessment (RCSA). The Company has been put in place a process of periodic
review of risks and testing of controls.

The Company also has a mechanism in place to monitor Operational Losses / Near
Miss events at a Departmental level. Such events are reported and tracked on regular
basis with a clear focus to avoid repeat instances of similar nature.

The Company has absolutely ZERO tolerance for any frauds. However, if there are
any frauds which come to light; a strong governance framework is in place to deal with
such instances. The Company has an Ethics Committee to look into employee matters
and a Market Conduct Committee for Intermediary related matters. This helps in
focused reviews.

During the vyear, the Company has taken several initiatives for creating Risk
Awareness including observing Risk Awareness Week, training programs for
employees and education mailers on regular basis.

The Company also has in place a Board approved Business Continuity Plan & same is
being followed.

. The Company does not have insurance operations in any other country.

. During the current year the company has received intimation for claims and settled
claims amounting to INR 6,039,320 thousand (net of reinsurance and excluding TPA
fees and Claim investigation fees). The amount of claims outstanding including IBNR
(net of reinsurance) to be settled for the year ended March 31st 2022 is INR 1,062,551
thousand.



Ageing analysis of claims outstanding and average claims settlement time is given

below:

Ageing of Claims Outstanding on Gross basis (other than IBNR and Pre-

authorizations claims)
Total mount As at 31 Mar, As at 31 Mar, As at 31 Mar, As at 31 Mar, As at 31 Mar,
(Amount in 000s) 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018

No of No of No of No of No of

Days claims Amount claims Amount claims Amount claims Amount claims Amount
30 days 3816 | 1,77,311 | 3657 | 1,79,248 | 1655 76,021 1526 62,907 666 25,928
31days-6 months 803 83,333 965 96,617 664 49,647 117 17,217 203 50,770
6 months — 1 year 20 3,003 7 3,066 8 7,738 11 1,708 35 515
1year - 5 years 5 250 1 200 1 58 1 9
5 Years & above - - - - - - - - - -
Total 4644 2,63,897 4630 279,131 2328 133,464 1655 81,841 904 77,213

Trend in Claims Settlement:
Particulars 2021-22 | 2020-21 | 2019-20 | 2018-19 | 2017-18
Overall Average claim settlement time (In working days) 6 6 5 5 7

10.We certify that the Investments made in debt securities have been valued at historical
cost subject to amortization of premium / discount in accordance with the regulation.
For the purpose of comparison, the fair value of debt securities has been arrived
based on the Security Level Valuations (SLV) provided by CRISIL Limited (A SEBI

Registered Rating Agency) in respect of Bonds and Government securities.

11.All Investments as on 31t March 2022 are performing assets. Investments are
managed by competent personnel under the supervision of the investment committee
appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company. The quality and performance of
assets are subject to periodical review by such committee. The Company invests only
in high credit quality instruments.

12.We also Confirm that : -

i) In the preparation of financial statements, the applicable accounting standards,
principles and policies have been followed along with proper explanations
relating to material departures, if any;

ii) the management

cumulative loss of the Company for the year ended;

has adopted accounting policies and applied them
consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
for the year ended 31t March 2022 and of the operating loss and of the




iii) the management has taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of
adequate accounts records in accordance with the applicable provisions of the
Insurance Act, 1938 (4 of 1938) / Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other

irregularities;

iv) the management has prepared the financial statements on a going concern

basis;

V) The management has ensured that an internal audit system commensurate with
the size and nature of the business exists and is operating effectively.

13. Payment made to entities in which Directors are interested

!Entlty in which Director is Name of the Director Interested as Amount (Rs’000)
interested
Manipal Health Enterprise Pvt Ltd Dr._RanJanPal &S Director 1,32,661
Vaitheeswaran
Quess Corp Revathy Ashok Director 4,695
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors.
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